RECEIVED

STATE OF WISCONSIN 12-06-2012 COURT OF APPEALS

DISTRICT IV

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

Appeal No. 2012 AP 1663 Circuit Court Case No. 2011 TR 7630

STATE OF WISCONSIN, Plaintiff-Respondent,

v.

TRAVIS M. RANTA, Defendant-Appellant.

BRIEF AND APPENDIX OF DEFENDANT-APPELLANT

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR SAUK COUNTY, BRANCH 2, THE HONORABLE JAMES EVENSON PRESIDING

Respectfully submitted,

Elbert & Wolter, Ltd. Jacquelyn L. Wolter, SBN: 1052322

Attorney for Defendant-Appellant, Travis M. Ranta

210 E. Center Street P.O. Box 203 Juneau, WI 53039-0203 (920) 386-2505

STATEMENT OF ISSUES

I. WHETHER THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN FINDING THE RANGER HAD PROBABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE RANTA WAS OPERATING WHILE UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF AN INTOXICANT AND, THEREFORE, ERRED WHEN IT CONSIDERED THE PBT RESULT IN ASSESSING PROBABLE CAUSE TO ARREST.

Answer: YES

STATEMENT ON ORAL ARGUMENT

The defendant-appellant does not request oral argument of the issue presented in this case, but stands ready to so provided this Court believes that oral argument would be useful in the exposition of the legal arguments presented.

STATEMENT ON PUBLICATION

The defendant-appellant does not request the decision of this Court be published.

STATEMENT OF CASE

On August 13, 2011, Travis M. Ranta (herein referred to as "Ranta") was issued a citation for Operating Under the Influence of an Intoxicant in violation of Wis. Stat. § 346.63(1)(a)¹, first offense. Then, on August 30, 2011, Ranta was issued a citation for "Prohibited Alcohol Content" in violation of Wis. Stat. § 346.63(1)(b), first offense (R. 1). On September 26, 2011, Ranta filed a Motion to Dismiss and/or Suppress Unlawful Arrest (R. 6 & 7). On November 16, 2011, a Motion Hearing was held in front of the Honorable James Evenson (R. 33). At the conclusion of the Hearing, the circuit court denied Ranta's Motion (R. 33). Ranta filed a Notice of Appeal on July 25, 2012 (R. 35).

¹ All references to the Wisconsin Statutes are to the 2009-2010 version unless otherwise noted.

STATEMENT OF THE FACTS

On August 13, 2011 at approximately 7:05 p.m. Kenneth Lane was working as a ranger with the State of Wisconsin Department of Natural Resources at Devil's Lake State Park (R. 33:5, 22-23). On that date and time, Ranger Lane went to campsite number 361 to assist with an investigation of a disturbance and underage drinking situation (R. 33:23). While at the campsite, Ranger Lane met with Ranta (R. 33:24). At that time, Ranger Lane noticed Ranta was intoxicated (R. belligerent, 33:24), The Ranger testified Ranta was uncooperative, and loud (R. 33:24). Ranger Lane also testified Ranta staggered while walking around the campsite, he had a strong odor of alcohol on his breath, and he had slurred speech (R. 33:24).

While at the campsite, Ranger Cowan advised Ranger Lane that Ranta had a preliminary breath test result of .15 (R. 33:25). However, the Ranger admitted he was not with Ranger Cowan when Ranger Cowan administered the PBT and could not testify if the PBT was working correctly (R. 33:52-53). The Ranger did not have any personal knowledge as to what time Ranger Cowan administered the PBT (R. 33:53). In addition, Ranger Lane admitted there are two common factors that tend to produce high PBT results, that being residual mouth alcohol and breath contaminations (R. 33:52).

-6-

Some time later, Ranger Lane received a transmission that Ranta's truck was leaving (R. 33:27). Ranger Lane used stationary radar to determine Ranta's vehicle was traveling 30 miles per hour in a 15 mile per hour speed zone (R. 33:28-29). Ranger Lane followed the vehicle and stopped the vehicle (R. 33:30).

Ranger Lane testified when he made contact with Ranta, he smelled an odor of alcohol and observed Ranta had bloodshot eyes (R. 33:31). Ranger Lane then requested Ranta perform field sobriety tests (R. 33:31).

First, Ranger Lane requested Ranta to perform the walk and turn test (R. 33:31). The Ranger testified Ranta only exhibited one clue on the walk and turn test (R. 33:31 & 46). Ranger Lane testified one clue is "less than what the training requires to indicate a .10" (R. 33:46). Ranger Lane testified he was trained to observe eight clues on the walk and turn test and two or more clues is considered a failure of the test (R. 33:46-47).

The clue Ranger Lane testified he observed on the walk and turn test was that Ranta failed to touch heel to toe on one of the eighteen steps (R. 33:47-48). However, Ranger Lane could not recall which step Ranta failed to touch heel to toe (R. 33:47). Further, the Ranger acknowledged not touching heel to toe in and of itself is not a clue (R. 33:47). He

-7-

went on to state, "It needs to be more than six inches or I mean more than a half an inch" when testifying to the amount of space needed between the heel and toe to be considered a clue (R. 33:47).

The next test Ranger Lane administered was the horizontal gaze hystagmus test (R. 33:31 & 48). Ranger Lane testified, when conducting this test, he was looking for six clues and four clues is considered failing (R. 33:48). Ranta passed this test, exhibiting only two clues, hystagmus at maximum deviation in both eyes (R. 33:32 & 48). Ranger Lane could not recall asking Ranta if he had any eye abnormalities and acknowledged as part of his training he was advised that people exhibit jerkiness at maximum deviation even when they are unimpaired (R. 33:49-50).

Finally, Ranger Lane requested Ranta perform the one leg stand test (R. 33:32). Ranta exhibited no clues on this test (R. 33:32 & 50-51). Ranger Lane then administered a PBT, the result of the PBT was .11 (R. 33:37).

Ranger Lane testified he did not believe Ranta was under the legal limit when he requested Ranta to submit to the PBT (R. 33:34). Ranger Lane testified he based this opinion on the fact that, based on his training and experience, the rate of alcohol elimination in people is at a rate of less than .02

- 8 --

per hour (R. 33:32 & 34). However, the Ranger acknowledged he does not have any medical training regarding the dissipation of alcohol in a person's system (R. 33:40). His testimony was merely based on what someone told him at a training. However, he could not remember when that training took place (R. 33:40).

STANDARD OF REVIEW

In reviewing a motion to suppress, this Court applies a two-step standard of review. <u>State v. Eason</u>, 2001 WI 98, ¶9, 245 Wis.2d 206, 221, 629 N.W.2d 625. First, this Court reviews the circuit court's findings of historical fact under the clearly erroneous standard. Second, this Court reviews the application of constitutional principles to those facts <u>de novo</u>. <u>Id</u>.

ARGUMENT

I. WHETHER THE CIRCUIT COURT ERRED IN FINDING THE RANGER HAD PROBABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE THAT RANTA WAS OPERATING WHILE UNDER THE INFLUENCE OF AN INTOXICANT AND, THEREFORE, ERRED WHEN IT CONSIDERED THE PBT RESULT IN ASSESSING PROBABLE CAUSE TO ARREST.

<u>Case Law</u>

"If a law enforcement officer has probable cause to believe that the person is violating or has violated Wis. Stat. § 346.63(1)..., the officer, prior to an arrest, may request the person to provide a sample of his or her breath for a preliminary breath screening test using a device approved by the department for this purpose." Wis. Stat.§ 343.303. The Wisconsin Supreme Court concluded that the legislature intended "probable cause to believe" in the first sentence of Wis. Stat. § 343.303 to refer to a quantum of proof that is greater than the reasonable suspicion necessary to justify an investigative stop, and greater than the "reason to believe" necessary to request a PBT from a commercial driver, but less than the level of proof required to establish probable cause to arrest. <u>County of Jefferson v. Renz</u>, 231 Wis.2d 293, 317, ¶51, 603 N.W.2d 541 (1999).

A warrantless arrest is not lawful except when supported by probable cause. <u>State v. Lange</u>, 2009 WI 49, ¶19, 317 Wis.2d 383, 391, 766 N.W.2d 551. Probable cause to arrest for operating while under the influence of an intoxicant refers to that quantum of evidence within the arresting officer's knowledge at the time of arrest that would lead a reasonable law enforcement officer to believe that the defendant was operating a motor vehicle under the influence of an intoxicant. <u>Id</u>. The burden is on the State to show that the officer had probable cause. <u>Id</u>.

<u>Argument</u>

In <u>Renz</u> the Supreme Court concluded that the officer possessed the required degree of probable cause to request

-11-

that Renz submit to a PBT. <u>Renz</u>, 231 Wis.2d at ¶50. The Supreme Court based its conclusion on several indicators of intoxication exhibited by Renz. <u>Id</u>. at ¶49. Renz's car smelled strongly of intoxicants. He admitted to drinking three beers earlier in the evening. <u>Id</u>. Renz exhibited one of four clues on the one-legged stand test. <u>Id</u>. at ¶8. He exhibited two of eight clues on the heel-to-toe test and exhibited all six clues on the HGN test. <u>Id</u>. at ¶9 & 11. Finally, Renz touched the bridge of his nose, rather than the tip of his nose on the finger-to-nose test. <u>Id</u>. at ¶49.

Ranta agrues the instant case is distinguishable from <u>Renz</u>. Unlike Renz, according to Ranger Lane's testimony, Ranta passed <u>all</u> of the standard field sobriety tests (R. 33:46-51). Unlike Renz, who exhibited two of eight clues on the walk and turn test, Ranta only exhibited one clue (R. 33:31 & 46). Ranta's only error on the walk and turn test consisted of failing to touch heel to toe on one of the eighteen steps (R. 33:47-48). However, the Ranger could not testify to which step Ranta missed (R. 33:47). In addition, it was unclear from the Ranger's testimony whether he even knew how much space was required between the heel and toe to consider the space between as a clue (R. 33:47).

Unlike Renz, who exhibited all six clues on the HGN

-12-

test, Ranta only exhibited two clues on the HGN test, nystagmus at maximum deviation in both eyes (R. 33:32 & 48). Regarding the two clues observed, the Ranger testified he did not ask Ranta if he had any eye abnormalities and the Ranger acknowledged that people exhibit jerkiness at maximum deviation even when they are unimpaired (R. 33:49-50).

Unlike Renz, who exhibited one of four clues on the one leg stand test, Ranta exhibited zero clues (R. 33:32 & 50-51). Therefore, Ranta argues the standard field sobriety test results do not provide any indicia of intoxication because he passed every test he was required to perform.

Further, Ranta asserts the circuit court erred in considering his demeanor earlier in the evening when determining the Ranger had probable cause to believe Ranta was operating while intoxicated. The Ranger testified Ranta was belligerent, uncooperative, and loud during his first contact with Ranta (R. 33:24). Further, he testified Ranta staggered, had a strong odor of alcohol, and slurred speech (R. 33:24). However, Ranger Lane did not testify that Ranta exhibited any of these attributes at the time of the stop, except for an odor of alcohol on Ranta's breath. Specifically, Ranger Lane testified Ranta had an odor of alcohol on his breath and observed bloodshot eyes at the

-13-

time of the stop (R. 33:31). Ranta asserts the circuit court may have considered the fact that he consumed intoxicants earlier in the evening, as the officer did in <u>Renz</u>. <u>Id</u>. at ¶49. However, Ranta asserts the circuit court should not have considered his demeanor exhibited earlier in the evening because he did not exhibit the same demeanor at the time of the stop.

In addition, Ranta asserts the circuit court clearly erred in allowing Ranger Lane to testify as to the rate of alcohol elimination in an individual, and erred in relying on that testimony, because Ranger Lane was not qualified to testify to the rate of alcohol elimination (R. 33:32 & 34). According to Wis. Stat. § 907.02, "If scientific, technical, or other specialized knowledge will assist the trier of fact to understand the evidence or to determine a fact in issue, a witness qualified as an expert by knowledge, skill, experience, training or education, may testify thereto in the form of an opinion..." Ranta asserts scientific training is required for a witness to testify as to blood alcohol calculations. Ranger Lane did not have any medical training regarding the dissipation of alcohol in a person's system. (R. 33:40). The only training Ranger Lane had regarding alcohol elimination was that someone told him

-14-

about it at a training at some unknown time (R. 33:40).

Ranta argues without expert testimony as to alcohol elimination in the human body, the result of the first PBT from earlier in the evening should not have been considered by the circuit court. Ranta asserts that just because he had a PBT result of .15 earlier in the evening does not mean that he was over the legal limit hours later. If the State asserts that position, the State would have to present expert testimony to support that assertion. However, again, Ranta acknowledges that general knowledge of drinking earlier in the evening could have been considered by the circuit court.

Even if this Court finds under the circumstances the first PBT could be considered, Ranger Lane was not present when the PBT was administered. He did not know what time the PBT was administered. Finally, the Ranger acknowledged residual mouth alcohol and breath contaminations are common factors causing high PBT results and without the Ranger being present at the time of the test, he could not testify if these factors were present (R. 33:52-53). Therefore, even if the circuit court could have considered the first PBT, the circuit court failed to recognize that the Ranger had no personal knowledge of the test result or its

-15-

accuracy.

Finally, Ranta asserts Ranger Lane's remaining observations, of an odor of alcohol and bloodshot eyes, do not rise to the level of probable cause required to request a PBT. Ranta acknowledges that if this was a case where he was subject to the .02 PAC standard, an odor of alcohol would be enough to authorize Ranger Lane to request a PBT. <u>State v. Goss</u>, 2011 WI 104, ¶2, 338 Wis.2d 72, 75-76, 806 N.W.2d 918. However, Ranta was not subject to the .02 PAC standard because this case involves a first offense, Operating While Intoxicated citation. Ranta has not found any case law indicating a PBT can be administered based on the odor of alcohol and bloodshot eyes when dealing with a .08 PAC standard.

Ranta argues if the circuit court was unable to consider the PBT result, then Ranger Lane lacked probable cause to arrest Ranta. Ranta asserts the only indicators of alcohol consumption the circuit court could have relied on was an odor of alcohol and bloodshot eyes. As stated above, Ranta argues those two indicators are not enough to request a PBT. If those two indicators are not enough to request a PBT, it follows, those two indicators are not enough to establish probable cause to arrest.

-16-

CONCLUSION

Ranta asserts the circuit court erred in finding that Ranger Lane had probable cause to believe that Ranta was operating while under the influence of an intoxicant and, therefore, erred when it considered the PBT result in assessing probable cause to arrest.

First, Ranta asserts the facts of his case are markedly different from the facts in the Renz case. Ranta easily passed all of the standard field sobriety tests. Renz did not. Ranta asserts the standard field sobriety test results did not provide Ranger Lane with any indicia of intoxication. Ranta further asserts his actions observed earlier in the evening should not have been considered by the circuit court in the circuit court's assessment of probable cause. Ranta also asserts the circuit court should not have considered the Ranger's testimony regarding the rate of alcohol elimination in the human body. If the court erred in considering Ranta's actions and the alcohol elimination testimony, the only facts remaining for the circuit court to consider were an odor of alcohol, bloodshot eyes, and knowledge of prior alcohol Ranta asserts these facts do not support the consumption. level of probable cause required to administer a PBT. Therefore, it follows, that Ranger Lane did not have probable

-17-

cause to arrest.