RECEIVED

STATE OF WISCONSIN 12-21-2012 COURT OF APPEALS DISTRICT IV

CLERK OF COURT OF APPEALS OF WISCONSIN

Appeal No. 2012-AP-1663

STATE OF WISCONSIN,

Plaintiff-Respondent,

vs.

TRAVIS M. RANTA,

Defendant-Appellant

BRIEF OF PLAINTIFF-RESPONDENT

ON APPEAL FROM JUDGMENT OF CONVICTION AND AN ORDER DENYING SUPPRESSION OF EVIDENCE ENTERED IN THE CIRCUIT COURT FOR SAUK COUNTY, THE HON. JAMES EVENSON, PRESIDING

Respectfully submitted,

STATE OF WISCONSIN, Plaintiff-Respondent

BY: SUE MUELLER Assistant District Attorney Sauk County, Wisconsin State Bar No. 1013430 515 Oak Street Baraboo, WI 53913 (608) 355-3280

STATEMENT OF THE ISSUES

Did the DNR Ranger have sufficient probable cause to request that Defendant submit to a Preliminary Breath Test?

The Court answered yes.

STATEMENT ON PUBLICATION AND ORAL ARGUMENT

Plaintiff-Respondent recognizes that this appeal, as a one judge appeal, does not qualify under this Court's operating procedures for publication. Hence, publication is not sought. Plaintiff-Respondent does not seek oral argument as the briefs should adequately present the issues on appeal.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

The Defendant-Appellant's, (hereafter Ranta) Statement of Case is correct.

The first witness called at the Suppression hearing on November 16, 2011 was Patrick Cowan, a certified police officer with the State of Wisconsin, DNR, Devil's Lake State Park, with 10 years of law enforcement experience, and a bachelor's degree in criminal science and law enforcement and law enforcement certifications from Wisconsin Technical College. (33:4,5) Cowan was working at the Park on Saturday, August 13, 2011 and after 5:50pm he was called to a disturbance at site 361 at the United States campground. (33:4-6) When Cowan arrived at the campsite, he saw a case of Bud Light beer, some open, and an open can inside a black Ford Ranger. (33:7) Cowan spoke with Travis Ranta, who told Cowan that all the alcohol at the site belonged to Ranta, and that he'd been drinking it. Ranta also stated the Ford Ranger was his vehicle. (33:8). Cowan described Ranta's behavior as "loud, boisterous a little bit, had a very extreme attitude and discontent in regards to the situation." (33:9) At about 6:30 or quarter to seven, and about 10 or 15 minutes before he was given a preliminary breath test, (PBT), Cowan saw Ranta drinking at the campsite. (33:21) The decision was made to evict Ranta and his underage companions for disorderly conduct and drinking, and a preliminary breath test was

administered to Ranta at 7:20 pm to determine if he was safe to drive. (33:9,10) The result of the PBT was a .156.

Cowan used a Department of Transportation approved Alco-Sensor IV for the PBT, which he operated according to his training. (33:13)

Officer Ken Lane was at the campsite at that time, was told about the PBT, and was having a discussion with Ranta about who would drive Ranta's truck. (33:11, 26) Cowan heard Ranta tell Lane that nobody was going to drive his truck but Ranta. (33:11, 26)

At about 20 minutes after eight, Cowan was called to a disturbance at the concessions store at the Ice Age Campground. From the description of the witnesses to the disturbance, Cowan believed one of the people involved was Ranta, and Cowan saw Ranta's truck drive by the parking lot of the store at 30 to 35 mph in a 15 mph zone. (33:11,12) Cowan advised Lane to look for Ranta's Ford Ranger. (33:12)

Ranger Ken Lane also testified at the Suppression hearing. Lane has been a ranger employed by the DNR since April 12, 1982 and is a graduate of the police academy and is a certified law enforcement officer. Lane testified that he was at campsite 361 at 7:05 on August 13, 2011, and spoke with Ranta who was intoxicated, belligerent, uncooperative, loud, staggering, with slurred speech and a strong odor of alcohol on his breath. (33:22-24) Lane was advised that

While Lane was trying to find a legal driver for Ranta's truck, Ranta insisted he was going to drive his truck.

(33:26) Lane believed Ranta was "in no shape to drive," and Lane was "firmly adamant" that Ranta not do so. (33:26)

Later, Lane was notified that Ranta's truck was on the move and found the truck and clocked Ranta on radar at 30 mph in a 15 mph area. (33:29) Lane stopped Ranta's truck at 12 minutes after nine, (33:53) and when speaking with Ranta, Lane observed an odor of alcoholic beverages on Ranta's breath and Ranta's eyes were bloodshot. (33:31) Ranta did well on field sobriety tests, having 1 clue on the heel to toe test, 2 clues on the HGN test and no clues on the one leg stand. (33:31,32) However, based on his training a experience, Lane knew that the elimination rate of alcohol in people is less than .02 per hour, (33:34), and therefore "in the period of 2 hours it would be impossible to go from a .15 to below .08." (33:35) Ranta's PBT result was .11 and Lane was not surprised because this result was consistent with his calculations. Ranta was placed under arrest. (33:37)

ARGUMENT

THE RANGER HAD SUFFICIENT PROBABLE CAUSE TO BELIEVE THAT RANTA WAS VIOLATING THE OWI LAWS TO REQUEST THAT RANTA SUBMIT TO A PRELIMINARY BREATH TEST.

A trial court's findings of fact should be upheld unless they are clearly erroneous. State v. Richardson, 156 Wis.2d 128, 137, 456 N.W.2d 830 (1990). However, whether those facts satisfy a statutory standard of probable cause is a question of law which the Court of Appeals reviews de novo. Richardson at 137-138; State v. Kasian, 207 Wis.2d 611, 621, 588 N.W.2d 687 (Ct.App. 1996). In determining whether certain facts establish probable cause for an arrest, a court must determine whether the circumstances were such, that a reasonable law enforcement officer could conclude that the defendant probably committed the offense. State v. Wille, 185 Wis. 2d 673, 682, 518 N.W. 2d 325, 329 (Wis.App. 1994). Applied to an arrest for OWI, a court must look at the totality of the circumstances to determine whether the arresting officer's knowledge at the time the arrest was made, would lead a reasonable police officer to believe that the defendant was operating a motor vehicle while under the influence of intoxicants. Kasian, 207 Wis. 2d at 621.

Relying on County of Jefferson v. Renz, 231 Wis.2d 293,

known to Ranger Lane were sufficient to establish the "probable cause to believe" as required by section 343.303 Wis. Stats.

The issue in *Renz* was whether a law enforcement officer was required to have "probable cause to arrest" prior to asking a suspect to submit to a PBT pursuant to section 343.303 Wis. Stats.. Section 343.303 provides, in pertinent part,

"If a law enforcement officer has probable cause to believe that the person is violating or has violated s. 346.63 (1) or (2m) or a local ordinance in conformity therewith, or s. 346.63 (2) or (6) or 940.25 or s. 940.09 where the offense involved the use of a vehicle, . . . the officer, prior to an arrest, may request the person to provide a sample of his or her breath for a preliminary breath screening test using a device approved by the department for this purpose. The result of this preliminary breath screening test may be used by the law enforcement officer for the purpose of deciding whether or not the person shall be arrested for a violation of s. 346.63 (1), (2m), (5) or (7) or a local ordinance in conformity therewith, or s. 346.63 (2) or (6), 940.09 (1) or 940.25 and whether or not to require or request chemical tests as authorized under s. 343.305 (3). The result of the preliminary breath screening test shall not be admissible in any action or proceeding except to show probable cause for an arrest, if the arrest is challenged, or to prove that a chemical test was properly required or requested of a person under s. 343.305 (3). . .

In interpreting that statute, the Wisconsin Supreme Court concluded,

"We therefore determine that neither case law nor legislative history compels us to interpret the first sentence of Wis. Stat. § 343.303 in a manner that undermines the meaning of the second and third sentences of the statute. Instead, we conclude that the context, history and purpose of from a commercial driver, but less than the level of proof required to establish probable cause for arrest. Under this construction, the second and third sentences function sensibly. An officer may request a PBT to help determine whether there is probable cause to arrest a driver suspected of OWI, and the PBT result will be admissible to show probable cause for an arrest, if the arrest is challenged. The context, history, and purpose of the statute strongly support this reasonable construction." Renz, at 315-316

The officer in Renz stopped Renz for a loud exhaust, not indicative of impaired driving. The officer in Renz noticed a strong odor of intoxicants on Renz who admitted consuming three beers earlier in the evening. Renz submitted to five field sobriety tests. He recited the alphabet correctly, displayed one clue on the one leg stand, displayed two clues on the heel to toe test and touched the bridge of his nose with his left hand on the finger to nose test. Renz had six clues on the HGN, which the officer believed indicated a blood alcohol level of at least .10%; however, the trial court in Renz did not allow the officers testimony on, or consider the results of, the HGN test.

Based on the facts before him, the officer in Renz

requested Renz to submit to a PBT. After a PBT result of .18%, Renz was arrested. The Supreme Court noted that the

10

facts presented in *Renz*, where defendant exhibited several indicators of intoxication but did not have slurred speech and was substantially able to complete all the field sobriety tests, presented the precise scenario envisioned by the legislature for employing a PBT: "The officer was faced with exactly the sort of situation in which a PBT proves extremely useful in determining whether there is probable cause for an OWI arrest. We conclude that the officer had the required degree of probable cause to request the defendant to submit to a PBT." *Renz* at 317.

Here, Ranger Lane also appropriately used the PBT as the legislature intended, as a "screening test before establishing probable cause for an OWI arrest." Renz at 307. Ranger Lane observed that defendant displayed several indicators of intoxication at the time of the stop: Ranta was speeding twice the speed limit leaving a disturbance, and Ranta had an odor of intoxicates on his breath and bloodshot eyes. But, Ranta did well on the field sobriety tests.

Ranger Lane considered the totality of the circumstances. "In determining whether probable cause existed, we look to the totality of the circumstances. *State v. Babbit*, 188 Wis.2d348, 356, 525 N.W.2d 102 (1994). Ranger Lane could not,

and should not as a reasonable officer have ignored what he knew of the defendant's behavior and condition two hours before the stop, which included behavior consistent with a PBT reading of .156. Ranger Lane could not and should not as a reasonable officer ignore his training and

11

experience which included elimination rates which allow him to calculate the defendant's BAC at the time of the stop. So faced with conflicting evidence of the degree of defendant's level of intoxication, Ranger Lane properly used the PBT for its intended purpose: "an effective tool for law enforcement officers investigating possible OWI violations." Renz at 315.

CONCLUSION

Based upon the totality of the circumstances,
Ranger Lane had the probable cause necessary under section
343.303 Wis. Stats. to request a preliminary breath test of
this Defendant. The decision of the Court to deny the
Defendant's motion should stand.